# GNOSIS

### An International Refereed Journal of English Language and Literature

Included in the UGC Approved list of Journals with journal number 48815

### Vol. 4 – No. 4 July 2018

### **Abstracting and Indexing:**

Index Copernicus, SJIF, Citefactor.org, IIJIF, DAIJ, ESJI, DRJI, Google Scholar, Academia.edu, Researchgate

#### Editor

Dr. Saikat Banerjee Faculty of Humanities and Social Sciences, St. Theresa International College, Ongkarak, Nakahon Nayok, Bangkok, Thailand Mobile: +66-646323095 E-mail: gnosisprintjournal@gmail.com Website: www.thegnosisjournal.com

### Publisher

Yking Books G-13, S.S. Tower, Dhamani Street, Chaura Rasta, Jaipur - 302003, Rajasthan, India Phone No. + 91-141-4020251, M.: 9414056846 E-mail: ykingbooks@gmail.com Website: www.ykingbooks.com

**DISCLAIMER:** Articles and views published in this journal DO NOT necessarily reflect the views or policies of the Editorial Board.

© **COPYRIGHT:** Reproduction of the contents of GNOSIS in whole or in part without the prior permission of the Editor is prohibited. All disputes concerning the journal are subject to Jaipur Jurisdiction.

## **Table of Contents**

Editorial	7
Articles	
Baudelaire's Quest for 'New' in The Flowers of Evil	9
—Amitabh Roy	
Dickensian Echoes in D.H. Lawrence: A Study in Comparison	16
—Richa Bhardwaj	
A Critical Assessment of the Epistemology of a Queer Hero	25
—Mohd. Ahmar Alvi	
Bankimchandra Chattopadhyay's "Prachina ebong Nabina"	35
—Anavisha Banerjee	
Nineteenth century Victorian India through	
the Eyes of a Woman Traveler Mary Carpenter	45
—Amrita Bhattacharyya	
Nation as Identity in Amitav Ghosh's	
The Circle of Reason and The Shadow Lines	55
—Rekha Tiwari	
Food Metaphors in Chitra Banerjee Divakaruni's	
The Mistress Of Spices and Sister Of My Heart	62
—Manreet Dhaliwal	
Wide Sargasso Sea: A Journey from	
Identity Creation to Identity Destruction	71
—Vipan Kumar	
Liberating Lesbian Bonds in	
Manju Kapur's A Married Woman	81
—Shalini Sharma	
Trauma: Dimensions, Politics and Representability	89
—Dona Elizabeth Sam	

The Language of Negation in The Madness of the Day	100
—Nisarga Bhattacharjee & Ananya Chatterjee	
(Re)reading the Subjugated History of the Subcontinent through the Bangla Magic Realist Novel Khowabnama	109
—Somrwita Ghosh	
Stature of Women in U.R. Ananthamurthy's Samskara	118
—Vidhi Yadav & Manoj Kumar Vidyalankara	
"How to Tell a Shattered Story": Reading Ecofeminism in The Ministry of Utmost Happiness	129
—Sarita Dubey	
(Un)Womanliness and Masculinity on Trial: A Gendered Study of George Eliot's <i>The Lifted Veil</i>	136
—Riya Maji	
Tale of Two Families: A Representation of Aussie Identity by reworking the Matrix of Australian Family in Tim Winton's <i>Cloudstreet</i>	145
—Midhu Mirian Alex	
Man's Entrapment within the Construct of Masculinity: An Analysis of Strindberg's <i>The Dance of Death</i>	154
—Brahmacharimayum Samita Devi & Paonam Sudeep Mangang	
South Asian women writers and Partition: A Psychoanalytic study of <i>The Skeleton</i> and <i>Cracking India</i>	163
—Himani Sharma, Bhavya & Shweta Saroha	
History and the Other: Writing Pain and Marginality in J. M. Coetzee's <i>Disgrace</i>	173
—Surojit Kayal	
Investigating the Interface between Organ Trading and Cyberculture in Manjula Padmanabhan's <i>Harvest</i>	183
—Abhisek Ghosal	
Religious Persecution of Christians from the Tribal Communities and Dalits in Orissa: The Politics of Accusation and Huntington's 'Clash of Civilizations'	195
—Recho Benjamin Teron	

Mohan Rakesh's <i>Halfway House</i> ( <i>Adhe Adhure</i> ): A Tale of Human Relationship	204
	204
Voicing the 'Voiceless' : A Study of Baby Kamble's	
The Prisons We Broke	216
—Anusha Prashar	
Exploring the Interaction between Trauma and Memory in Shahnaz Bashir's Novel, <i>The Half Mother</i>	224
—Neha Chatterjee	
Poems	
Be with You	234
— Shikha Goyal	
Day Trading Trickle Down Effect	235
—Victoria Crawford	
The Venetian Macao	238
—Xia Fang	
Fallen [Stolen] Feeling	239
—B. Zulaiha Shakeel	
Disquiet	241
—Sanjib Kumar Baishya	
Awakening	242
—Christa Pandey	
Verse of Distress	244
—Vanshika Sharma	
In Morn	247
—Neha Raina	
Congé	248
—Sreedevi K.S.	
My Golden Days	249
—Anindya Sundar Pal	
Delusion	250
—Amrita Sharma	

Agamani	251
—Sabarna Roy	
Our Esteemed Contributors	253

### **Editorial**

The July 2018 issue of GNOSIS had a very warm response from the readers in India and abroad that articles have been flowing in quick succession to fill the folder for this issue even before the deadline of 10 May 2018. The thumping reception of the journal shows the depth of multicultural issues in literature to which critics and readers are attracted. As a journal committed to quality research and writing, we are aware of the need to delink quality from publication cost. Hence, our decision to charge no publication fee from the scholars whose papers will be published in the issues of GNOSIS. At the same time since GNOSIS is a self-financed venture, co-operation and support in the form of subscriptions are solicited from the readers and admirers of English Literature and Language from all over the world. It is my honour and privilege to inform all the well wishers of GNOSIS that GNOSIS has been included in the approved journal list of UGC with serial number 48815. On behalf of the entire family of GNOSIS I would like to thank the officials of UGC for recognizisng the hard and honest work put in by each and every member of GNOSIS and enlisting it in the approved list of journals. I would also like to take this opportunity to thank all the Academicians and well wishers of GNOSIS who recommended GNOSIS to be included in the UGC list. There are twenty three research/critical articles and twelve poems in this issue. Before concluding, I would like to express my sincere gratitude to my reverend Associate Editor, Dr. Indira Nityanandam and our esteemed members of the Board of Advisors and Review Editors for their selfless and tiresome efforts in assessing the articles very sincerely and giving their valuable remarks to bring out this issue in such a grand manner. I am also grateful to the revered contributors who have made this issue of the Journal a beautiful reality. Wishing all the readers a mental feast. Happy Reading!

#### Dr. Saikat Banerjee

Editor

### Baudelaire's Quest for 'New' in The Flowers of Evil

**Amitabh Roy** 

## Submitted: 18 October 2017 , Revised: 5 May 2018, Accepted: 15 June 2018

Abstract: Baudelaire, the most discussed Modernist city poet was a master of symbolism. He did not only follow the long nurtured symbols of traditional poetic world, rather created his own symbols which are new, interesting and enthralling. His use of images and symbols makes his poetry a complete tale of darkness and ennui. Still a hidden desire of 'new' makes him stand apart from other poets of symbolism and modernity. Baudelaire's so called dark poetry needs much closer reading and analysis in order in order to delve deep. Unlike a typical storyteller, Baudelaire does not like to express his thoughts and feelings in an explicit manner. Rather, he enjoys the poetic bliss and leaves certain things for readers to imagine. His cunning use of images and symbols give his poetry a beautiful grandeur. Though most of the critics label him 'anti-life' and worshipper of death; a careful study of his used symbols may lead a researcher towards a hidden treasure house of optimistic future. The hope of a 'new' dawn is buried under his utmost disgust, angst and sense of overwhelming despair. It is left to the readers to interpret his poems based on their own perception.

Keywords: Dark, Despair, Ennui, Symbolism, Modernity.

Baudelaire, a precursor of Symbolist movement in literature and an isolated genius of the nineteenth century France became a universally acclaimed name in the days after his death. Baudelaire's *Les Fleurs du Mal* (The Flowers of Evil), a classic of modern poetry presents a new kind of images. Baudelaire's sonnet '*Correspondences*' included in *Les Fleurs du Mal* is one of the seminal influence of Symbolist movement. His *spiritus mundi* is replete with dark and despondent symbols in an apparent look, but if we care to delve further, a new vision of meaning opens before our eyes. Though much attention has been paid towards the 'evil' by the critics, we should not overlook the 'flowers' that Baudelaire has found here also.

A careful study of these images and symbols establish Baudelaire as a poet of affirmation. He not only revealed the dark existence, he nurtured a silent hope of the bright dawn. He knew well that darkness of night gives birth to a new dawn. Such hidden assertion of affirmative outlook remains unnoticed by most of Baudelaire's critics. He is, therefore, easily marked as 'poet of death' or worshipper of negativity. The monarch of 'symbolism' kept his vision of 'new' dawn hidden under a garb of darkness and ennui. Unfortunately, critics do not pay attention to this hidden hint of positivity and affirmation. A close reading of his so called dark poetry reveals before us a ray of hope which is otherwise subdued by his lifelong bitter experiences and misfortune.

#### Works Cited

- Baudelaire, Charles. *Les Fleurs du Mal.* translated. Richard Howard. Pan Books, 1987.
- ----. Le Peintre de la vie modern. Fayard/Mille et une nuits, 2010.
- Brereton, Geoffrey. A Short History of French Literature. Cassell, 1962.
- Brombert, Victor. *The Romantic Prison*. Princeton University Press, 1978.
- Strachey, Lytton. *Landmarks in French Literature*. Oxford University Press, 1912.

### Dickensian Echoes in D.H. Lawrence: A Study in Comparison

**Richa Bhardwaj** 

## Submitted: 4 April 2018, Revised: 15 May 2018, Accepted: 15 June 2018

**Abstract:** The formal contrast in the novels of D. H. Lawrence and his great predecessor Charles Dickens is sometimes so apparent that it can make one lose sight of the essential continuity that underlies their work. Lawrence's open-ended narratives that capture the inner life of characters may seem a far cry from Dickens's novels that have intricate plot construction, closed endings and use the moralizing voice of a third person narrator. While the obvious differences between the two novelists serve as a tribute to their originality, the similarity in their novels is far too elaborate and extensive to be merely incidental and forms the bedrock of their work.

Key Words: Community, Industrialism, Instinct, Utilitarianism, Socialistic Ideal.

Born more than seventy years apart, Charles Dickens and D. H. Lawrence are the major novelists of their respective eras whose differences seem more obvious than their similarities. However, Lawrence can be seen as taking ahead the legacy of his noteworthy predecessor. Although apparently relatively untouched by the modernist predilection for experimentation, Lawrence's open-ended narratives that focus on the internal/elemental life (carbon) of characters offer a sharp contrast to Dickens's novels that have intricate plot construction, close endings and rely on an impersonal narrator's moralizing voice. Still the two writers can be seen as kindred minds and souls, who, while taking recourse to different ways and methods, share a broad human sympathy that is reflected, for example, in their portrayal of the life and rhythms of working class. A clear apprehension of the two novelists' strength, their locating the seeds of change within the individual and speaking for the flow of sympathy among human beings makes one see Lawrence as imbibing Dickens's influence and working in the main tradition of the English novel. It is the same generous sympathy that is at work in a novel like Lady Chatterley's Lover (1928) and gives it the ideas and preoccupations of his great Victorian predecessor in a most accomplished manner.

#### Works Cited

- Boulton, James T., editor. *The Selected Letters of D.H. Lawrence*. Cambridge UP, 1997.
- Chambers, Jessie [E.T.]. D.H. Lawrence: A Personal Record. 1935. Cambridge UP, 1980.
- Craig, David. Introduction. *Hard Times*, by Charles Dickens, Penguin, 1983, pp. 11-36.
- Dickens, Charles. Hard Times. 1854. Penguin, 1983.
- Holderness, Graham. D.H. Lawrence: History, Ideology and Fiction. Gill and Macmillan, 1982.
- Lawrence, D.H. "A Propos of '*Lady Chatterley's Lover*'." 1928. *Lady Chatterley's Lover*, edited by Michael Squires, Penguin, 1994, pp. 303-336.
- ---. Kangaroo. 1923. Penguin, 1988.
- ---. Lady Chatterley's Lover. 1928. Penguin, 1994.
- —. *Phoenix : The Posthumous Papers of D.H. Lawrence*. Edited by Edward D. MacDonald, Heinemann, 1936.
- -. Phoenix II: Uncollected, Unpublished andOther Prose Works of D. H. Lawrence. Edited by Warren Roberts and Harry T. Moore, Heinemann, 1968.
- —. The Rainbow. 1915. Penguin, 1995.
- Leavis, F.R. D.H. Lawrence: Novelist. 1955. Peregrine, 1968.
- Shiach, Morag. "Work and Selfhood in *Lady Chatterley's Lover.*" *The Cambridge Companion to D.H. Lawrence*,edited by Anne Fernihough, Cambridge UP, 2001, pp. 87-102.
- Squires, Michael. "Lawrence, Dickens, and the English Novel." *The Challenge of D. H. Lawrence*, edited by Michael Squires and Keith Cushman, U of Wisconsin P, 1990, pp. 42-61.
- Williams, Raymond. *The English Novel from Dickens to Lawrence*. Hogarth, 1970.
- Worthen, John. D.H. Lawrence: The Early Years, 1885-1912. Cambridge UP, 1991.

### A Critical Assessment of the Epistemology of a Queer Hero

Mohd. Ahmar Alvi

## Submitted: 29 May 2018, Revised: 23 June 2018, Accepted: 30 June 2018

Abstract: Ever since the notion of 'hero' and 'heroism' infiltrated social and cultural imaginaries, much mutation and modification has been witnessed in these categories. Nevertheless, 'masculinity' and 'prowess' have seemingly ingrained as the two ever-lasting, underlining features of the category 'hero,' the corpus of literature has offered. The refusal of these two features to die down is the negation of a more inclusive paradigm offering space and validity to queer sexual and gender possibilities which decline to practise veritable 'masculinity' and 'prowess' as the two set 'heroic' behaviours. Consequently, those who do not comply with hetero-normative-identificatory sexual categories and conventional gender roles are held pervert and denied recognition of 'hero' as their sexualities are regarded as 'immoral'. This paper will engage with the critical study of this myopic understanding of the notion of 'hero' and 'heroism'. To this end, the paper attempts to look into how the definitions and rubrics of the category 'hero', 'anti-hero' and 'villain' have been interpreted and how our approaches to the interpretation of these definitions and rubrics can be reoriented in order to expand the contour of 'heroic' roles and 'heroism' thereby giving a heroic status to characters with alternative sexualities.

Keywords: Hero, heroism, masculinity, prowess, queer.

Indubitably, the notion of 'hero', works of literature in the world have offered, has always been a site for contestation and modification at the same time. This phenomenon can be ascribed to the nebulous and impressionistic nature of the very qualities which these works seek in their so-called 'heroes'. The qualities, such as 'morally uprightness', 'virtuousness', 'nobility' etc., embedded in *Spoudaios*, are subject to different interpretations in different contexts. Moreover, how different one might be in one's exegesis of these qualities decides the 'heroism' of a hero.

- Butler, Judith. Bodies That Matter: On the Discursive Limits of "Sex". Routledge, 1993.
- -... Gender Trouble: Feminism and the Subversion of Identity. Routledge, 1999.
- Klapp, Orrin E. "The Creation of Popular Heroes." American Journal of Sociology, Vol. 54, No. 2, 1948, pp. 135-41. JSTOR, <u>www.jstor.org/ stable/2771362</u>. Accessed 14 March 2018.
- Lu, Mathew. "Getting Serious about Seriousness: On the Meaning of *Spoudaios* in
- Aristotle's Ethics." *Proceedings of the ACPA*, vol. 87, 2014, pp. 285-93.
- Philosophy Documentation Centre, doi: 10.5840/acpaproc201441412. Accessed 21 March 2018.
- Miller, Madeline. The Song of Achilles. Ecco-Harper, 2012.
- Vasudhendra. "Bicycle Riding." *Mohanaswamy*. Translated by Rashmi Terdal, Harper Perennial, 2016, pp 36-74.



List Price	:	Rs. 450/-
Published	:	May 9, 2014
ISBN	:	978-93-83809-79-0
Page count	:	275
Language	:	English
Published by	:	Power Publishers

### RECENT TRENDS IN INDIAN ENGLISH LITERATURE

Edited by Saikat Banerjee

### Bankimchandra Chattopadhyay's *"Prachina ebong Nabina"*

Anavisha Banerjee

## Submitted: 26 April 2018, Revised: 15 May 2018, Accepted: 15 June 2018

Abstract: My article focuses on Bankimchandra Chattopadhyay's essay, "Prachina ebong Nabina" (The Woman of Old and the New Woman) (1874). Generally, Bankim's fictional writings, especially his novels have been discussed in exploring his representation of women. Since many of the English language scholars have not worked in the area of his non-fictional writing, my article captures the essence of his Bengali language and focuses on his representation and views about women. In "Prachina ebong Nabina," my prime focus is to analyse the position of Bengali women in nineteenth century colonial Bengal. The backdrop of women's reform movement and the Bengal Renaissance underlines the debate between the traditional and the modern woman, thus exploring the title of the essay. The public and the private space for women has been an important part of the Nationalist debate due to the colonial impact of westernization. Bankim's conflicting views about the above issues become an important ground in exploring his position as a writer. Since his essay was published in the periodical Bangadarshan (1872), which was seen as the mirror of Bengal, Bankim's position as a publisher, editor and contributor becomes an important ground in exploring his role in influencing his readers during the sociocultural developments of the nineteenth century. The fictitious letters given at the end of the essay becomes an additional source in my analysis of Bankim's views regarding the position of Bengali women.

**Key words:** women's reform, Bengal Renaissance, colonial, westernization, tradition and modernity.

This article will focus on Bankimchandra Chattopadhyay's (Chatterjee) (1838-1894), "*Prachina ebong Nabina*" (*The Woman of Old and the New Woman*) (1874).<sup>1</sup> I have chosen essay this essay since it relates to the theme of western influence on the Bengali Hindu women in nineteenth century colonial Bengal. Bankim becomes an important author in exploring these themes because of his attitude of

#### Notes

- 1. See Bankimchandra Chattopadhyay. "*Prachina ebong Nabina*" (The Woman of Old and the New Woman) (*Translation mine*), pp. 298-306.
- See S.C.Sengupta, "Bankimchandra and the Bengal Renaissance," pp. 133-139.
- 3. See M.K. Haldar. "Introduction." A reference to Bankim's letter to Kumar Benoykrishna Deb, dated 27 July, 1892, pp. 133.
- See Bankimchandra Chattopadhyay. "Bangadarshaner Patrasuchana" (Publication of Bangadarshan) (Translation mine). Bankim Rachanabali, pp. 334-338.
- See Bankimchandra Chattopadhyay. "Prachina ebong Nabina," pp. 304-306.
- 6. See Shormishtha Panja's essay in *Signifying the Self* for detailed discussion, pp. 211-225.
- 7. See Partha Chatterjee's essay "The Nation and its Women" for detailed discussion, pp. 116-134.

#### Works Cited

- Chatterjee, Partha. The Nation and its Fragments: Colonial and Postcolonial Histories. Princeton University Press, 1997.
- Chattopadhyay, Bankimchandra. *Bankim Rachnabali*. Vol II. Shubham Publication, 2012.
- Sarkar, Tanika. *Hindu Wife, Hindu Nation: Community, Religion and Cultural Nationalism*.Permanent Black, 2001.
- Haldar, M.K. Renaissance and Reaction in Nineteenth Century Bengal: Bankim Chandra Chattopadhyay. Minerva (Associates) Publications Pvt. Ltd., 1977.
- Panja, Shormishtha. "Rabindranath Tagore's *Chokher Bali*: The New Woman, Conjugality and the Heterogeneity of Home." *Signifying the Self: Women and Literature*, edited by Malashri Lal, Panja and Satpathy, Macmillan, 2004, pp. 211-225.

## Nineteenth Century Victorian India through the Eyes of a Woman Traveler Mary Carpenter

Amrita Bhattacharyya

## Submitted: 9 May 2018, Revised: 15 May 2018, Accepted: 30 June 2018

**Abstract:** In the nineteenth and early twentieth century there had been an influx of foreign travellers and missionaries who came to study India and its people. These travellers carried back a portrait of India and its characteristics for their own people. The social, political, cultural, religious and economical features of India were sometimes collected from first hand reports and sometimes from conjectures or hearsay. They commented on the condition of women, children, prison and daily life of India. Among these travellers, I have chosen Mary Carpenter as my focus of study. Here in this paper I will especially focus on Mary Carpenter's *Six Months in India* (1868). I will investigate her position as a feminist missionary.

Key words: Women travellers, women, children, hospitals, prison.

Mary Carpenter (1807-1877) hailed from England and was a social worker. She was the daughter of a Unitarian religious follower named Lant Carpenter. She met Rammohun Roy (1772-1833) during his stay at the house of Miss Castle and Miss Kiddel in Stapleton, Bristol in England in 1833. She visited India in 1868. She worked towards amelioration of the Indian woman whom she found had little or no education as they were married very early. She was very active to abolish the system of slavery in the West. She visited schools and prisons in India and worked for their reformation by submitting reports to the government. She supported formation of female normal schools for training of female teachers, girls' schools and reformatory schools for delinquents. Carpenter writes from a sympathetic point of view and she found that enlightened people were 'anxious to bring Western civilisation into their own country'. (Carpenter 36) Victorian England believed in documentation and preservation of records which sometimes became too deterministic for the colonised people. Edward Said in his book Orientalism (1978) notes that the West often held a predetermined

- Burton, Antoinette. "Contesting the Zenana: The Mission to Make "Lady DoctorsforIndia,"1874-1885." Accessed on 15 April, 2018. https://www.ideals.illinois.edu/bitstream/handle/2142/2292/ file\_1...?sequence=1.
- Carpenter, Mary. *Six Months in India*. Longmans Green and co., 1868, Accessed on 15 April, 2018. www.googlebooks.co.in.
- Said, Edward. Orientalism. Penguin Books, 1978.

### Nation as Identity in Amitav Ghosh's *The Circle of Reason* and *The Shadow Lines*

Rekha Tiwari

## Submitted: 16 April 2018, Revised: 15 May 2018, Accepted: 30 June 2018

Abstract: The terms nations and nationalism despite their common usage, have always been enigmatic terms. The proliferation of theories like post colonialism, multiculturalism, globalization and post modernism have upheld or defied national identities and boundaries. Of the contemporary Indian writers of novels in English, Amitav Ghosh happens to be extremely fascinating with his distinctive originality and flair for experimentation. The present paper attempts to examine his portrayal of diasporic situations and the impacts of the force of globalization in The Circle of Reasons and the The Shadow Lines, the writers first two novels, for it seems that national boundaries and diasporic thoughts have assumed a central importance in the construction of the novels. Migration and dislocation, indubitably are strikingly significant phenomena of the present time. Amitav Ghosh perhaps believes that no culture is self- contained. Nor can any culture exist in isolation. His stories as such move over countries and continents. The characters go beyond their national boundaries and incidents extend across several locations.

**Key Words**: Nationalism, Culture, Globalization, Nations, Migration, Identity, Diaspora.

In his novels Amitav Ghosh explores the ideas of Nationhood and Diaspora, ideas that involve relationships between individuals belonging to the same or to different communities that sometimes transgress and transcend the shadow lines of political borders. *The Shadow Lines* is simultaneously about each character's personal identity and probably represents Ghosh's most direct confrontation with nationalism and national identity. Both in Political Science and Geography there is a specific definition of a country or a state. The work 'Country', however, bears a specific meaning to a man. A man's entire entity of present, past as well as future is associated with his own country or native land or homeland. On the background of that crisis Amitav Ghosh writes an The structure of the novel is a complex jigsaw puzzle carefully crafted with its pieces seemingly strewn about with haphazard randomness. Both the narrator and the reader discover through this artistic form that the world is not a simple place that can be seen in an atlas. Though the solid lines that divide the nations may not be clearly visible, they are in fact an inexorable fact, as they lead to political aggression and violent bloodshed.

#### Works Cited

- Dixon, Robert. "Travelling in the West: The Writing of Amitav Gosh". Ed. Tabish Khair. Amitav Ghosh: A Critical Companion. Permanent Black, 2003, p. 10.
- Ghosh, Amitav "The Diaspora in Indian Culture". *The Iman and The Indian: Pieces*. Ravi Dayal /Permanent Black, 2002, p. 243.
- —. The Shadow Lines. Critical Essays by A.N. Kaul, Suvir Kaul, Meenakshi Mukherjee, R.S. Rajan. (Ed.) Oxford University Press, 1995, p. 299.



List Duiss		$D_{a} = 1405/$
List Price	:	Rs. 1495/-
Published	:	2016
ISBN	:	978-93-85528-05-7
Page count	:	324
Language	:	English
Published by	:	Yking Books

### CRITICAL ESSAYS ON DALIT LITERATURE

Edited by Satendra Kumar

## Food Metaphors in Chitra Banerjee Divakaruni's *The Mistress of Spices* and *Sister of My Heart*

**Manreet Dhaliwal** 

## Submitted: 31 May 2018, Revised: 13 June 2018, Accepted: 25 June 2018

Abstract: Chitra Banerjee Divakaruni is an Indian American woman writer who continuously returns to her indigenous Bengali culture in all her works. Among the several aspects of her native Bengali culture that Divakaruni keeps harking back to in her writing, food and several beliefs, rituals and practices associated with it occupy a central place. The present paper aims at examining how Divakaruni uses food in her novels The Mistress of Spices and Sister of My Heart. Food occupies a central place in The Mistress of Spices. It becomes the main source of memory and serves as an anchor for the immigrant characters in the novel. Divakaruni writes to dissolve boundaries between people from various ethnic backgrounds. And the use of food as a metaphor appropriately serves her purpose. Food is also one of the most important metaphors in Sister of My Heart. It reveals Bengali community's belief systems and religious doctrines. It provides an insight into the writer's native Indian Bengali culture reflecting its positives and negatives. By providing elaborate references to delicious and rich Bengali food and by highlighting practices, traditions, rituals, and beliefs associated with food, Divakaruni succeeds in showcasing an authentic picture of her native culture.

Keywords: Food, diaspora, culture, tradition, patriarchy.

The term 'food' though a simple one on the surface level is actually complex because of the several cultural connotations it has. Terry Eagleton in his work, "Edible Ecriture" rightly says about food:

If there is one sure thing about food, it is that it is never just food. Like the post-structuralist text, food is endlessly interpretable, as gift, threat, poison, recompense, barter, seduction, solidarity, suffocation. (Eagleton)

Food has a crucial role to play in national as well as social context. In his essay "Food and Memory," Jon D.Holtzman defines food as a

- —. Interview by SujataShekhar. "Sisters and Spices." *Guernica*, Guernica, 3 Aug. 2015, 14 Mar. 2018. www.guernicamag.com/sistersand-spices/.
- —. Interview by Frederick Luis Aldama. "Unbraiding Tradition: An Interview with CHITRA DIVAKARUNI." Journal of South Asian Literature, vol.35, no. 1/2, 2000, pp. 11-12. JSTOR. <u>www.jstor.org/</u> <u>stable/40873759</u>.
- Eagleton, Terry. "Edible Ecriture." *Times Higher Education*, Times Higher Education, 24 Oct. 1994, www.timeshighereducation.com/ features/edible-ecriture/104281.article.
- Gavani, G. B. "The Diasporic Visions in the Mistress of Spices." Gavani, Blogger, 7 Dec. 2011, http://gavani-gavani.blogspot.com/2011/12/ diasporic-visions-in-mistress-of-spices.html.
- Ganguly, Keya. States of Exception: Everyday Life and Postcolonial Identity. U of Minnesota P, 2001.
- Holtzman, Jon D. "Food and Memory." The Annual Review of Anthropology, vol.35, 21Sept. 2006, pp.361-78.Scribd, www.scribd.com/document/347001164/61771303-Holtzman-Foodand-Memory.
- Mannur, Anita. *Culinary Fictions: Food in South Asian Diasporic Culture*. Temple UP, 2010.
- Millett, Kate. Sexual Politics. U of Illinois P, 2000.
- Rajan, Gita. "Chitra Divakaruni's "The Mistress of Spices": Deploying Mystical Realism." *Meridian*, vol. 2, no. 2, 2002, pp. 215-36. *JSTOR*, www.jstor.org/stable/40338518.
- Tharoor, Shashi. "Currying Flavor: The Mistress of Spices." Los Angeles Times, Los Angeles Times, 3 Mar. 1997, http://articles.latimes.com/ 1997-03-09/books/bk-36309\_1\_chitra-banerjee-divakaruni.

### *Wide Sargasso Sea*: A Journey from Identity Creation to Identity Destruction

Vipan Kumar

## Submitted: 31 May 2018, Revised: 5 June 2018, Accepted: 30 June 2018

**Abstract:** Jean Rhys' *Wide Sargasso Sea* (1966) revolves around the character of Antoinette who is suppressed on the basis of race, gender and colonial politics. The present paper traces her identity crisis on all these grounds. It examines the causes of the internal clash and sharp divisions that torture the protagonist. Tracing a significant connection between Antoinette of *Wide Sargasso Sea* and Bertha Mason, the madwoman of the attic in Charlotte Bronte's *Jane Eyre* the paper also investigates her struggle to surmount the crisis in a social setup where women are triply suppressed by race, class, gender and colonialism. It sketches out her efforts to have an identity of her own and how far she succeeds in this struggle.

Keywords: Identity, colonialism, culture, madness, intertextuality.

It is not easy to define the term "identity" because it has a multidimensional nature. To study identity, we need to study disciplines like narratology, psychology, sociology, etc. Since it is not possible to include discussions on the term itself, we can consider explanation given in the *Oxford* dictionary that identity is the condition of being a specified person or thing. It includes the constituents of individuality. It includes a large number of aspects. It is established through a process which includes various constituents. Through this research paper, I have tried to study identity crisis in Jean Rhys's novel *Wide Sargasso Sea*.

In this novel, the identity of the protagonist Antoinette is a fragmentary one which includes different constituents; her gender (a woman), her race and ethnicity (Creole), a post-colonised, whose class and status have been shifted. These constituents contribute to understand her identity. Through these constituents we understand first the creation of her identity and then the destruction of the same. never let it be possible. Therefore, she felt like she was an outsider. These feelings were further enhanced when she went to England and felt that West Indians were not being received well and they were taken as inferiors. Thus, she felt a sense of belonging to nowhere. In this way, to some extent, she shares the same quest for identity which was reflected by VS Naipaul. Naipaul had to struggle a lot to gain recognition in such an environment wherein people did not accept him because he was not from an English origin. Similarly, although Rhys was English by origin, yet she had to struggle for her identity because she was not born in England. Thus she intended to present the same conditions in the life of her protagonist Antoinette. Since her protagonist has to disappear from the novel in the end, we can say that Rhys succeeds in developing an identity for her but fails to give her a permanent self.

#### Works Cited

- Casanova, Pascale. "Naipaul: The Need to Conform." *The World Republic of Letters.* Translated by M.B. DeBovoise. HUP, 2004.
- Jawad Kadhim, "Double Exile: Jean Rhys's *Wide Sargasso Sea.*" Vol 22(3). *IASJ*. Web. 19 Dec 2013.
- Rhys, Jean. Wide Sargasso Sea. W.W. Norton & Company, 1992.
- Said, Edward. Culture and Imperialism. Knopf, 1993.
- -. Orientalism. Random House, 1994.
- Spivak, Gayatari. "Ethics and politics in Tagore, Coetzee, and Certain Scenes of Teaching." *Project Muse.* 18 Nov 2013.
- —. "Three Women's Texts and a Critique of Imperialism." JSTOR. 27 Dec 2013.

### Liberating Lesbian Bonds in Manju Kapur's A Married Woman

Shalini Sharma

## Submitted: 26 May 2018, Revised: 15 June 2018, Accepted: 30 June 2018

Abstract: Set against the backdrop of Babri Masjid, Ram Janambhoomi conflict Manju Kapur's A Married Woman (2002) chronicles the events in the life of an educated middle class Delhi based Hindu girl from infatuations of adolescence to alienation in marital relationship. Astha, the protagonist is not a traditionally glorified woman but a modern woman who shakes off the burden women have been carrying for ages.Not at all a self sacrificing, submissive, enduring, quiet being, she is rather educated, assertive, assured, protesting, and ambitious, making the world aware, of her need for identity and struggling to get solace amalgamating the two contrary worlds of tradition and modernity. Kapur here explores the positioning of a woman with regard to her sexual orientation where lesbian relationship fills the two women's lives with joy, freshness, vitality and vibrancy. In present paper an attempt has been made to understand how the novelist challenges the male ego centricism that is oblivious to the plight and pitiable condition of women. The lesbian bond is seen as a threat to male chauvinism which denies women their socio-economic and political rights and also disregards emotional wellbeing pushing them in subservient and subjugate state.

Keywords: Education, lesbianism, marginalize, modernity, tradition.

Literature of the times reflects the human life, the actions, words, reactions, messages, and sensibilities for the purpose of information, understanding, entertainment, and education. It chronicles what people think, say and do in a society. Existing sexual identities in modern India are a result of multiplicity of conflicts and perceptions of tradition, modernization, colonization and globalization. Epistemologically speaking interpreting sexual minorities is with regard to approved heterosexuality. Homosexuality though is not a new concept in Indian society it's wrongly construed that lesbianism is a western import. On the contrary

need it, suppressing someone's will or talent, taking more than you need from people or nature, and failing to choose for yourself. It's the internal morality of dignity, autonomy, and balance (51).

The women in *A Married Woman* forge a bond of camaraderie with each other. They are a partner in each other's pain, sorrow, laughter, and dreams .They appreciate each other's achievements and rescue each other. Astha and Peepilika's journey is a struggle between redemption and revenge. Both fall into the category of 'New Woman' who overcomes insurmountable odds to change her mundane life. Manju Kapur makes her stance clear when she tells that poverty or passivity on the outside does not matter, what is important to note is that there is a possibility of change inside every human being. The novel also conveys that love redeems and meanness is fatal. The redemptive love celebrated between the two individuals though selective, prickly is beautiful and fulfilling.

#### Works cited

Kapur, Manju. A Married Woman. India Ink, 2002.

- Kapur, Manju in an Interview with Ira Pandey, *The Hindu*, January5, 2003.
- Kumar, Ashok."Social Web and Cry of the Self: A Critical Analysis of Manju Kapur's A Married Woman."(ed). Prasad, Amar Nath. New Lights on Indian Women Novelists in English, Vol.4.Sarup and Sons, 2008, pp.163-164.
- Sah, Binda."Quest for Identity in the Shadow Lines, Contemporary Indian writing in English: Trends, Concept &Techniques."(ed.) Nigamananda Das, Adhayan Publishers & Distributers,2007,pp. 147-151.
- Steinem, Gloria."Alice Walker, Blooms *Major Novelists*". (ed).Harold Bloom, Chelsea House Publishers.2000, pp .51.

### Trauma: Dimensions, Politics and Representability

**Dona Elizabeth Sam** 

## Submitted: 31 May 2018, Revised: 15 June 2018, Accepted: 30 June 2018

Abstract: While physical medicine defines trauma as harm caused to the body by an external source, psychiatric literature considers it as a mental wound and not a wound of the body. In Beyond the Pleasure Principle, Freud identifies trauma not just as an injury or a hurt but as an event which inflicts the mind and one which is realized by the one traumatised over a period of time with constant repetition of similar events or by memory. Two seminal texts which have emphasised on trauma and its connected nexus with psychoanalysis, literature, culture and historiography are Cathy Caruth's Unclaimed Experience and Dominick Lacapra's Writing History, Writing Trauma. The timely emphasis on trauma and its connection with different disciplines have made it part of what we now term or demarcate as trauma studies. Over a course of time, traumatic events and its aftermath become a pivotal point for psychoanalysis which witnessed a progressive trajectory in terms of defining and comprehending trauma. The article discusses the different dimensions of trauma and examines the representability of trauma in an attempt to analyse the latent prominence and politics underlying it.

Keywords: Perpetrator, politics, representation, trauma, victim.

Lacapra and Caruth, "in different ways, regard events, their aftermaths, and their representations as crucial to interpreting personal and social histories" (Berger 4). Caruth centralises Freud's idea of trauma as one that "seems to be much more than a pathology, or simple illness of a wounded psyche; it is always the story of a wound that cries out, that addresses us in the attempt to tell us of a reality or truth that is not otherwise available" (Caruth 4). Lacapra, contrarily, distinguishes between historical trauma and structural trauma. While historical trauma relates to one or more historical events in the life of an individual, structural trauma is not one which is related to any historical event but to an anxiety producing condition caused due to

#### Trauma: Dimensions ... Dona Elizabeth Sam

- Kansteiner, Wulf. "Genealogy of a Category Mistake: A Critical Intellectual History of the Cultural Trauma Metaphor." *Rethinking History: The Journal of Theory and Practice*, Vol. 8, No. 2, 2006, pp. 193-221.
- LaCapra, Dominick. Writing History, Writing Trauma. Johns Hopkins UP, 2001.
- Levy, Daniel and Natan Sznaider. "The Politics of Commemoration: The Holocaust, Memory and Trauma." *The Handbook of Contemporary European Social Theory*. Edited by Gerard Delanty, Routledge, 2006.
- Roth, Michael S. *Memory, Trauma, and History: Essays on Living with the Past.* Columbia University Press, 2012.



List Price	:	Rs. 995
Published	:	2017
ISBN	:	978-93-85528-07-1
Page count	:	224
Language	:	English
Published by	:	Yking Books

### TOWARDS NEW HORIZONS IN INDIAN ENGLISH LITERATURE

*Edited by* Saikat Banerjee

### The Language of Negation in The Madness of the Day

Nisarga Bhattacharjee & Ananya Chatterjee

## Submitted: 30 May 2018, Revised: 15 June 2018, Accepted: 30 June 2018

Abstract: The novella The Madness of the Day by Maurice Blanchot could both be called a reflection on and a performance of the act of narrating oneself, of one's experience of life, and of the impossibility of rendering life in language. As opposed to a predominantly factual and rational approach to life, the literary mind indulges in a direct, unmediated contact with the day-life. Our paper intends to show that the madness of day is the outcome of that contact - the incomprehensibility of life's multitudinous nature is maddening. We can thereby understand what, according to Blanchot, is the essential nature of literature. A reading of Blanchot's other prose writings can shed light on the workings of the text at hand. One can in that way see how Blanchot's concepts about literature, death, society and language are in operation in The Madness of the Day. Our paper intends to engage in a comparative reading of Blanchot's different texts with The Madness of the Day at the centre. In doing so, it shall be established that, as opposed to the rationally organized society that takes a direct and framed approach to existence, literature works in ways that cannot be easily relatable to life. This non-relation makes negation and anarchy the language of literature. This language of negation, however, is obliquely of value for society since it asserts life.

Key words: Madness, the Sacred, law, day, language, negation.

Maurice Blanchot (1907-2003), the French writer and critic, built his idea of literature through a refusal of the associations with the tradition of Western philosophy that have come to configure our perception of literature. As is the case with most of his works, his short story/novella *The Madness of Day* is a performance that is meant to convey suchan understanding of literature. The text is a reflection on the question – how does language operate in literature?

- Derrida, Jacques. Acts of Literature. Ed. Derek Attridge. Routledge. 1992. Library Genesis, http://gen.lib.rus.ec/book/index.php?md5= 18A19714DA177634876897EE9A9B08C9.
- Foucault, Michel. Power/Knowledge: Selected Interviews and Other Writings 1972-1977. Trans. Colin Gordon, Leo Marshall, John Mepham and Kate Soper. Pantheon Books, 1980.
- Gerald I. Bruns. Maurice Blanchot: The Refusal of Philosophy. Johns Hopkins University Press. 1997. Library Genesis, http:// gen.lib.rus.ec/book/index.php?md5=E5DCF8177B2BE3D0686FF0 A648B6F5C6.



List Price	:	Rs. 1150/-
Published	:	2016
ISBN	:	978-93-85528-31-6
Page count	:	236
Language	:	English
Published by	:	Yking Books

### DIASPORA IN FICTION: MANY HUES MANY SHADES

Edited by Dr. Farzana S Ali

## (Re)reading the Subjugated History of the Subcontinent through the Bangla Magic Realist Novel *Khowabnama*

Somrwita Ghosh

## Submitted: 27 May2018, Revised: 20 June 2018, Accepted: 30 June 2018

**Abstract:** *Khowabnama* by Bangladeshi writer Akhtaruzzaman Elias is often considered as a landmark novel in Bengali literature. In this novel, Elias introduces the technique of magic realism and unearths a subjugated history of the subcontinent. This fragmented past stands in stark contrast to the oppressive class structures and the communal violence in undivided rural Bengal at the time of Partition. In this paper, I would discuss the various aspects of magic realism that Elias introduces in this novel like the element of supernaturalism and the interplay of history and myth. I would also briefly make a comparative study of this novel with Salman Rushdie's *Midnight's Children*.

**Keywords**: Magic realism, subjugated history, supernaturalism and myth.

#### Introduction

Magic realism as a literary practice has transcended the borders of Latin America and became a global phenomenon. It has gradually evolved influencing and being influenced by post-colonial and postmodern literary techniques. It is now usually associated with the non-Western countries, and there have been various arguments around the definition of the term. One such argument is that it is considered as a postcolonial approach to resist the centralizing Western literary theories and their appropriation of the 'other'. Magic realism celebrates the hybrid identity of the postcolonial nation-states by providing a platform for diverse thoughts. Deconstruction of the historical status is one of the central themes that run through the literary texts. This process of deconstruction of history in magic realist texts is aided by several characteristics. The emphasis is on popular cultural beliefs, historicizing myths, juxtaposing the world of the non-human with the living world, non-linear time and the experimentation with word-forms in language.

The novelists of the subcontinent who adopted this mode have analyzed the historical context of colonization, Partition and the question the thoughts of the people and contact with the other midnight's children.

#### Conclusion

The element of 'irreverence' in *Khowabnama* shares the same ground with realism. Elias influenced by Marxist ideas was well aware of the oppressive class structure in rural society in the 1940s. The quest for an egalitarian society that freedom promised seemed illusory. It is only through active class struggles that such a repressive structure can be overthrown. The peasant struggles that resurfaces throughout the novel is a constant reminder of that revolution and to restore unity among masses.

#### Notes

- 1. The legend of Bhavani Pathak appears in Bankimchandra Chattopadhyay's novel *Devi Chowdhurani*
- 2. From Michel Foucault's *Power/Knowledge* (Lecture One)
- 3. Reference to the fictitious barren land in English novelist Thomas Hardy's novels.

#### Works Cited

- Bandopadhyay, Sibaji. "Khowaber Raatdin." *Bangla Uponyashe 'Ora'*, edited by Sibaji Bandopadhyay, Papyrus, 1996.
- Dhar, T.N. "Problematizing History with Rushdie in Midnight's Children". *Journal of South Asian Literature*, vol.28, 1993, pp 93-111. *JSTOR*, www.jstor.org/stable/40873307.
- Elias. Akhtaruzzaman. Khowabnama. Naya Udyog, 1996.
- Ghosh, Pothik. "Akhtaruzzaman Elias: Beyond the Lived Time of Nationhood". *Radical Notes*, 1<sup>st</sup> April, 2008, radicalnotes.org/2008/ 04/01/akhtaruzzaman-elias-beyond-the-lived-time-of-nationhood.
- Rushdie, Salman. Midnight's Children. Vintage, 1995.
- Warnes, Christopher. Magical Realism and the Postcolonial Novel: Between Faith and Irreverence. Palgrave Macmillan, 2009.
- Zamora, Lois Parkinson. "Magical Romance/ Magical Realism: Ghosts in U.S. and Latin American Fiction." *Magical Realism: Theory, History, Community*, edited by Lois Parkinson Zamora and Wendy B. Faris, Duke University Press, 1995, pp. 497-550.

### Stature of Women in U.R. Ananthamurthy's Samskara

Vidhi Yadav & Manoj Kumar Vidyalankara

## Submitted: 31 May 2018, Revised: 8 June 2018, Accepted: 25 June 2018

Abstract: Being a very controversial novel, Smaskara describes two types of women- Brahmin women and low caste women. Brahmin women like Anasuya, Sitadevi, Lilawati, Naranappa's wife are described as sexless and have lack of vitality of life, while the low caste female like Chandri, Belli, Chinni are described as full of flesh and life force. They can lure any ascetic through their physical charm and their other needs like mental, emotional and psychological satisfaction are completely ignored. All women are deprived from the right to education that is why (Anasuya and Sitadevi) are unable to put their views intellectually before their husbands. The untouchable women have to beg and wear few clothes due to poverty and caste system. Through the Lakshmi devi amma, being a widow, it is delineated how all the widow women are considered ill- omen and how they have to live all alone and depend on the mercy of others. They have to follow many restrictions like shaven head and food restriction etc. All the women have very few opportunities to come out of their houses and express their views publicly. Through the Chandri and Padmavati, profession of prostitution is described. Dowry system and child marriage are also delineated by the talk between Praneshacharya and a Smarta Brahmin during their meal in temple. So this novel describes the position of women prevailing from 1930 to 1940s i.e. in Pre-Independence of India and explains gender inequalities that needs to be eradicated.

**Keywords:** Untouchability, Caste system of India, Dowry system, Child marriage and Prostitution.

Hinduism is a complicated system of beliefs and family is an important part in Hinduism. In family, a woman, being a caretaker of family members and domestic work, has to perform decisive aspect in the culture. It is supposed that she is adept to shift her innate female ability to the husband and tends to his family. Her role is assigned to be faithful with her husband in every situation and to rear up her

- Pinkham, Mildred Worth. *Women in the Sacred Scriputures of Hinduism*. AMS Press, 1967.
- Rodrigues, Valerian. *The Essential Writing of B.R. Ambedkar.* 9<sup>th</sup> Edition. OUP, 2011.
- Sidhwa, Bapsi. Water. OUP, 2006.
- ---. Fire. OUP, 2006.
- Venkat, D. U.R. Ananthamurthy's Samskar: A Critical Reader. Pencraft International Publications. Jan 2005.



List Price	:	Rs. 450/-
Published	:	2016
ISBN	:	978-93-85528-57-6
Page count	:	234
Language	:	English
Published by	:	Yking Books

### THE ELUSIVE GENRE (A COLLECTION OF ENGLISH SHORT STORIES)

Saikat Banerjee

## "How to Tell a Shattered Story": Reading Ecofeminism in *The Ministry of Utmost Happiness*

Sarita Dubey

## Submitted: 29 March 2018, Revised: 15 April 2018, Accepted: 30 June 2018

Abstract: Ecofeminism combines two very important words within its purview-'ecology' and 'feminism'. Both the concepts play a major role in the human existence. Ecofeminism is an inclusive theory that is developing a multi-system approach to understanding the interconnected forces that operate to oppress women and environment. It extends familiar feminist critiques of social isms of domination, for e.g., sexism, racism, classicism, heterosexism, ageism, to nature, i.e. naturism. The paper will analyze what are the problems it address, how it arise, and how it is concerned with the future of women and ecology of India and what best framework ecofeminism can provide to analyze them. Arundhati Roy is a strong voice against environmental degradation and gender exploitation. Her novels The God of Small Things and The Ministry of Utmost Happiness acknowledge that world is not what it should be. The Ministry of Utmost Happiness deals with lives of queers, racism, sexism, regionalism, speciesism, terrorism, rape, animal exploitation and pollution. Ecofeminism is knowledge and value based theory and its strength is dependent on flexibility, inconclusiveness and reflexibility of the community in which it is generated. The critical study of the characters and natural settings of the novel will point out the current situation of Indian women and nature and how this theory supports India towards planetary health, global justice and future of earth.

**Keywords:** Ecofeminism, Religion, Women, Ecology, Arundhati Roy, India.

#### Introduction

The term 'Ecofeminism' was first used by the French feminist author and civil rights activist Francoise d' Eaubonne in her work *Le Fe'minisme ou la Mort* (Feminism or Death), 1974. This book intended to create the awareness against the parallelism drawn between the women and nature for their subordination by the patriarchy. Ecofeminism

- "India among 5 Worst Countries in terms of Environmental Health". *Hindustan Times*, 24 Jan.
- 2018, Accessed 15 March 2018. <u>www.hindustantimes.com/india-news/</u> india-4th-worst-country-in-curbing-environmental-pollution/story-.
- "India Slips 21 Slots on WEF Gender Gap Index 2017". *The Hindu*, 2 Nov. 2017, Accessed 15 March 2018. www.thehindu.com/news/ national/india-slips-21-slots-occupy-108th-rank-on-wef-gender-gapindex-2017/.
- Kasturirangan, Rajesh, Krithika Srinivasan and Smitha Rao. "Dark and Dairy: The Sorry Tale of
- the Milch Animals". *The Hindu*, 8 Nov. 2014, Accessed 14 March 2018. www.thehindu.com/opinion/open-page/the-sorry-tale-of-themilcanimals/article6578663.
- Roy, Arundhati. *The Algebra of Infinite Justice*. Penguin Books India, 2002.
- -... The Ministry of Utmost Happiness. Penguin Random House India, 2017.
- —. and Divya Dwivedi. "Ministry of Utmost Happiness: Kerala Literary Festival 2018". YouTube, uploaded by DCBooksonline, 8 Feb. 2018, www.youtube.com/watch?v=feoTlN5wDL0.
- Shiva, Vandana. Ecology and Politics of Survival: Conflicts over Natural Resources in India. Sage Publications India, 1991.
- Vakoch, Douglas A and Sam Mickey, editors. *Women and Nature? Beyond Dualism in Gender, Body and Environment.* Routledge, 2018.

## (Un)Womanliness and Masculinity on Trial: A Gendered Study of George Eliot's *The Lifted Veil*

Riya Maji

## Submitted: 28 May 2018, Revised: 15 June 2018, Accepted: 30 June 2018

Abstract: This paper examines George Eliot's novella The Lifted Veil (1859) as a narrative which deploys disintegration of masculinity in order to probe the ways in which deviant and heroic women were unjustly classified as *femme fatale* by Victorian society. The Lifted Veil is a Gothic text, and hence expected to uphold medieval knightly values such as gallantry, chivalry, and heroism, since medievalism is a significant aspect of the Gothic genre. In Eliot's male protagonist, these cherished features of masculinity are not only conspicuously absent, but their absence is deliberately satirized. Latimer, the male protagonist is portrayed as emasculated and ineffectual. He is clearly a mismatch for his vivacious and ambitious wife Bertha. Eliot shows how Latimer's emasculated personality is deliberately ignored, pardoned and even defended by society. His lacuna is defended on the basis of the argument that it is Bertha's evil and unconventional attitude that has adversely affected Latimer's masculinity. Patriarchy cunningly misinterprets their relationship so as to put the blame of Latimer's unmanliness on Bertha's defiant nature which is condemned as 'unfeminine'. His insecurity reaches a climax when he hallucinates about Bertha murdering him. His deficient masculinity becomes an alibi for society to punish the heroic woman who deviates from stereotypical 'femininity' and tries to challenge patriarchal gender norms. This paper thus contends that Eliot's text negotiates the fluidity of the gender of literary heroism in an age which was vehemently determined to uphold heroism as a strictly masculine prerogative.

Key Words: Masculinity, stereotype, heroism, Victorian, *femme fatale*.

#### Introduction

One of the most striking legacies of the Industrial Revolution which continued to be influential until the mid- $20^{\text{th}}$  century is the
role. This paper thus contends that Eliot's text negotiates the fluidity of the gender of literary heroism in an age which was vehemently determined to uphold heroism as a strictly masculine prerogative.

#### Works Cited

- Danahay, Martin. Gender at Work in Victorian Culture: Literature, Art and Masculinity. Routledge, 2005.
- Eliot, George. The Lifted Veil. Penguin Classics, 2016.
- Gilmore, David. Manhood in the Making: Cultural Concepts of Masculinity. Yale UP, 1990.
- Halberstam, Judith. Female Masculinity. Duke UP, 1998.
- Kent, Susan. Queen Victoria: Gender and Empire. Oxford UP, 2015.
- Pascoe, C.J. and Tristan Bridges, editors. *Exploring Masculinities: Identity, Inequality, Continuity and Change.* Oxford UP, 2015.
- Reeser, Todd W. *Masculinities in Theory: An Introduction*. Wiley-Blackwell Publishers, 2010.
- Showalter, Elaine. *Sexual Anarchy: Gender and Culture at the Fin de Siecle*. Virago Press, 2008.
- Tosh, John. A Man's Place: Masculinity and the Middle-Class Home in Victorian England. Yale UP, 2007.

### Tale of Two Families: A Representation of Aussie Identity by reworking the Matrix of Australian Family in Tim Winton's *Cloudstreet*

Midhu Mirian Alex

## Submitted: 26 May 2018, Revised: 13 June 2018, Accepted: 30 June 2018

**Abstract:** Australian identity has always been a contested space and an attempt in defining the concept assumes to be a painstaking path that has to traverse a long way by acknowledging, accommodating, assimilating and thereby celebrating its multicultural character. Through Winton's classic work *Cloudstreet* the paper tries to examine what the post–war working class Australian life is all about by unraveling the intricacies of Australian multicultural identity under the aegis of family the cornerstone of a society.

Keywords: Winton, Australian identity, multiculturalism, family.

Australian identity has always been a contested space owing to its inherent state of flux created by an assortment of population that encompasses diverse cultures, identities and linguistic differences. Acutely aware of this diversity, defining Australian culture and identity assumes to be a painstaking path that has to span a long way by acknowledging, accommodating, assimilating and thereby celebrating its multicultural character. Therefore the depiction of the life of a random Australian itself furnishes a different kaleidoscopic view whereby the variegated spirit of Australia could be elucidated. This inclination of rendering the multifaceted tradition of Australia is perfected in the writings of the Miles Franklin awardee, Tim Winton, a towering figure in Australian Literature. Winton stands apart from the rest by his storytelling that endeavours a platter to "Western Australian experience fashioning a space for people, asking Australians to participate in Australian culture" (Messahel 1). He has bewitched the heart of the masses, by seasoning his narratives with Australian vernacular idioms as well as expressions.

This spell is continued in Winton's classic work *Cloudstreet* (1991), where he subtly and yet brilliantly sets out to bring forth the

family saga divulges a thin piece of the social history of the current generation of middle class Australian family at the margins of the Australian society. A different story of Australia is revealed by the two differently abled families, Pickles and Lambs. The readers might feel sorry for the characters, but the characters are not at all sorry because they are going ahead with life unraveling, celebrating as well as getting more close to their self with each and every moment in this No Man's Land—Australia.

#### Works Cited

- Ashcroft, Bill. "The Horizontal Sublime." The Sacred in Australian Literature. Eds. Bill Ashcroft, Frances Devlin-Glass and Lyn McCredden. Spec. issue of Antipodes Vol. 19. No.2, 2005, pp. 141-51.
- Dixon, Robert. "Tim Winton, *Cloudstreet* and the field of Australian Literature". *Westerly*, Vol. 50, (2005), pp. 240-260.
- Burgess, E.W., and H.J. Locke. *The Family*. American Book Company. 1945.
- Messahel, Salhia Ben. *Mind the Country*. U of Western Australian P, 2006.
- William, Raymonds. The Long Revolution. Broadview P Ltd, 2001.

Winton, Tim. Cloudstreet. Penguin, 1991.

### Man's Entrapment within the Construct of Masculinity: An Analysis of Strindberg's *The Dance of Death*

Brahmacharimayum Samita Devi & Paonam Sudeep Mangang

## Submitted: 11 May 2018, Revised: 15 May 2018, Accepted: 15 June 2018

Abstract: The real challenge every individual faces is their struggle to fit in. As we grow up we are made aware of socially constructed space, norms or definitions. It is our behaviour towards these constructs that decides if we are socially acceptable or not. The effort to exist is being equated with the effort to fit in. We are in constant struggle/ conflict with our own individuality as a consequence of our efforts to fit in. The term masculinity is usually associated with strength and power. Our social construct is such that if one is born male, he is expected to be masculine. However, the process of moulding a child into a man is entwined with inexplicable complexities. One of the recent focuses is on how the social construct of masculinity has done justice to the individual man. Attention on man's conditions and masculinity is needed just as the attention given on woman's condition and femininity. The current paper, therefore, focuses on the individual man's struggle to fit into the rigid social construct in Strindberg's play The Dance of Death.

**Keywords:** August Strindberg, *The Dance of Death*, Masculinity, Superior, Entrapment.

#### Introduction

Masculinity is defined as 'qualities or attributes regarded as characteristics of man'. Strong, unemotional, protective, authoritative are few of the qualities that we look up in a man. The term 'masculinity' looks easy to comprehend however it is encrypted with complexities. Connell views masculinity as "not just an idea in the head, or a personal identity but an idea extended in the world, merged in organized social relations" (*Masculinities* 29). Thus, masculinity is associated with power or dominance factor. Moreover, it is a psychological condition where one has to suppress any upsurge of weak qualities because weakness is not considered as an attribute of masculinity.

- Hageby, L. Lind-Af. August Strindberg: The Spirit of Revolt: Studies and Impressions. Stanley Paul & Co., 1913.
- Lerner, Gerda. *The Creation of Patriarchy*. Oxford University Press, 1987.
- Lips, Hilary M. Gender: The Basics. Routledge, 2015.
- Strindberg, August. *Twelve Plays*. Translated by Elizabeth Sprigge, Constable & Co. Ltd., 1963.



List Price	:	Rs. 1225/-
Published	:	2015
ISBN	:	978-93-85528-00-2
Page count	:	272
Language	:	English
Published by	:	Yking Books

### CHARTING NEW APPROACHES IN INDIAN ENGLISH FICTION

*Edited by* Saikat Banerjee

### South Asian Women Writers and Partition: A Psychoanalytic Study of *The Skeleton* and *Cracking India*

Himani Sharma, Bhavya & Shweta Saroha

## Submitted: 18 April 2018, Revised: 15 May 2018, Accepted: 30 June 2018

**Abstract:** The partition of India caused enormous turbulence and devastation by displacing 14 million people affecting their lives enormously. The present paper is an attempt to study one of the effects of partition i.e. psychoanalytic effects on selected characters in *The Skeleton* and *Cracking India*. The focus of present paper is to highlight the effects of subconscious or 'Preconscious' emotions and experiences which have determining influences on human psyche and decide the further course of action. Both writers have brilliantly projected a close picture of male inner psyche and psychological power praxis shifting from men to women.

Keywords: Psychoanalytic, Preconscious, Power Praxis, Inner psyche.

The Southern countries of Asia i.e. Afghanistan, Bangladesh, Pakistan and India share not only borders with each other but also share common geographical conditions, religious beliefs, ethnicity and a common history of breaking the shackles of colonization to create world identity. Specifically in India and Pakistan, the end of colonization marked the beginning of new era, accompanied by a storm of bloodshed, turmoil and devastation by displacing 14 million people. As Sidhwa quotes, "Partition as it is called, was a blood bath of unprecedented proportions blighting the independence celebrations and reinforcing hatreds that continue to erupt from time to time in that region." (Brian 100).

From time to time South Asian writers have tried to capture the essence of trauma and heartfelt pain of partition in their novels. To name a few from Pakistan like Saadat Hassan Manto in short stories, Attia Hosain in *Sunlight on a Broken Column* and Intizar Hussain in *Basti* have recounted the events of partition and its aftermath narrated in different voices. Indian partition writers like Khushwant Singh in

- Pritam Amrita., *Pinjar The Skeleton and other Stories*. Tara India Research Press, 2015.
- Rahman Tariq. A History of Pakistani Literature in English 1947-1988. Oxford University Press, 2015.

Sidhwa Bapsi. Ice-Candy Man. Penguin Random House India, 1989.

# History and the Other: Writing Pain and Marginality in J. M. Coetzee's *Disgrace*

Surojit Kayal

## Submitted: 31 May 2018, Revised: 15 June 2018, Accepted: 30 June 2018

Abstract: This paper explores how J. M. Coetzee devises an alternative mode of engagement with history in his novel Disgrace (1999). It offers a meditation on the reality status of history and the ways in which fiction might be able to critique its narrative logic. While conventional history concerns itself with the temporality of the event, with the pastness of the past, I argue that Coetzee imagines the spatiality of history and explores the cracks there in order to bring to light its constructedness. These cracks and blind spots are imagined as channels through which pain operates and journeys from event to being. They constitute the structural violence that underwrites the formation of history. This brings up the inevitable question: how to represent these channels of pain as counterpoints to a convenient and "mythic" history? Coetzee's usual technique is to stage ethical encounters with an absolute Other that cannot be reduced to the familiar structures of history. In the particular context of Disgrace, I argue that Coetzee's brand of ethical writing sets out to uncover and represent the subterranean channels of pain which adds up to the vision of a white marginality that counters the myth of a new South Africa based on reconciliation and forgiveness.

Keywords: History, myth, pain, the Other, marginality, South Africa.

Throughout the first half of his career J. M. Coetzee has had to face much criticism for the mode of his engagement with a violent history of South Africa during the apartheid era. Nadine Gordimer was extremely skeptical of his modernist attempt to "transform the world by style" and the subsequent "disestablishment from the temporal" (Gordimer, "Living" 248). In a review of Coetzee's novel *Life and Times of Michael K.* (1984), entitled "The Idea of Gardening", she takes Coetzee to task for his supposed lack of political engagement and responsibility at a time when the crisis of apartheid was at its worst and accuses him of mere formalist game playings, of "stately fastidiousness"

- Devi, Mahasweta. *Srestha Galpa* (Collection of short stories). Dey's Publishing, 2004.
- Gordimer, Nadine. "The Idea of Gardening." The New York Review of Books, 2 Feb. 1984, Accessed on 14 March 2018. www.nybooks.com/articles/1984/02/02/the-idea-of-gardening/
- —. "Living in the Interregnum." The Essential Gesture: Writing, Politics and Places, edited by Stephen Clingman, Taurus, 1988, pp. 219-50.
- Marais, Mike. ""Little enough, less than little: nothing": Ethics, Engagement, and Change in the Fiction of J. M. Coetzee." *Modern Fiction Studies*, vol. 46, no. 1, Spring, 2000, pp. 159-182.
- Spivak, G. C. "Can the Subaltern Speak?" *Marxism and the Interpretation* of *Culture*, edited by Cary Nelson and Larry Grossberg, University of Illinois Press, 1988, pp. 271-313.
- -. "Setting to Work." *Critical sense: Interviews with Intellectuals*, edited by Peter Osborne, Routledge, 1996, pp. 163-77.
- —. "Theory in the Margin: Coetzee's Foe Reading Defoe's Crusoe/ Roxana." English in Africa, vol. XVII, no. II, October, 1990, pp. 1-23.
- South Africa: Overcoming Apartheid Building Democracy. "The End of Apartheid and the Birth of Democracy." Accessed on 28 Apr. 2018. http://overcomingapartheid.msu.edu/unit.php?id=65-24E-6
- Truth and Reconciliation Commission. "Register of Reconciliation." Accessed on 28 Apr. 2016. www.justice.gov.za/Trc/ror/index.htm.

### Investigating the Interface between Organ Trading and Cyberculture in Manjula Padmanabhan's *Harvest*

Abhisek Ghosal

## Submitted: 23 May 2018, Revised: 30 May 2018, Accepted: 20 June 2018

Abstract: Following the worldwide spreading out of cyberculture in 1990s, it has become easier for capitalist nation-states to make illicit inroads into 'otherized' nation-states, intending to exploit the impoverished and wretched conditions of natives who can neither make room for themselves in the centre of the society nor can voice their dissents because of their powerlessness and consequently are compelled to get 'otherized' in the society and consigned to stay back at the margin. The tension between the decentralization and recentralization of capitalist world economy is triggered into action by Globalization at large, and the emergence of cyberculture, in particular, has unleashed global economy to intrude South Asia and has opened up a free and fluid virtual world for global commercial interactions. Organized crime, on the other hand, receives boost during this time and criminals gradually incline to choose virtual world to carry out criminal acts. Organized criminal groups begin to make much of the free flow of global economy through virtual world and spread out illicit trades to gain money. Positing the expansion of cyberculture and organized crime at the backdrop, Manjula Padmanabhan has penned down an intriguing play named Harvest to lay bare the problematic interface between illicit organ trading and cyberculture. This play succinctly encapsulates how West subtly unleashes illicit organ trading across India intending to exploit the miserable plight of natives living on the margin by using cybertechnologies. Economic otherization of natives within their own nation-state is intently executed to force them to give in illicit organ trading thereby facilitating Western organ traders to dominate over indigenous economic framework. This article is intended to examine the problematic interactions between illicit organ trading and cyberculture as reflected in the play.

**Key Words:** Organ Trading; Otherization; Cyberculture; Globalization; Organized Crime.

Padmanabhan, Manjula. Harvest. 2003. Aurora Metro Press, 2015.

- Paranjape, N.V.. *Criminology, Penology and Victimology*. 17th ed., Central law Publications, 2017.
- Ploug, Thomas. Cyberspace: How Cyberspace may Influence Interpersonal Interaction. Springer, 2009.

Reckless, Walter. The Crime Problem. Appleton-Century-Crofts, 1950.

- Robertson, Roland. "The Universalism-Particularism Issue." *Literature and Globalization: A Reader*, edited by Liam Connell and Nicky Marsh, Routledge, 2012, pp. 22-27. Originally published in *Globalization: Social Theory and Global Culture*, Sage, 1992, p. 97 and pp. 100-105.
- Roth, Mitchel P. Global Organized Crime: A Reference Handbook. ABC-CLIO, 2010.

Whittaker, Jason. The Cyberspace Handbook. Routledge, 2004.

Yar, Majid. Cybercrime and Society. Sage Publications, 2006.

### Religious Persecution of Christians from the Tribal Communities and Dalits in Orissa: The Politics of Accusation and Huntington's 'Clash of Civilizations'

#### **Recho Benjamin Teron**

## Submitted: 31 May 2018, Revised: 20 June 2018, Accepted: 30 June 2018

**Abstract:** Religious persecution in Orissa is a burning issue and the roots of this violence can be discerned in the light of Huntington's 'Clash of Civilizations' theory. As the causes of this persecution is studied, the underlying politics of accusation by religious leaders play a big part in flaming up of the mob frenzy. It is observed in the continuous violence committed against native Christians, especially in the persecution in Kandhamal that affected thousands of Christians. This paper studies this persecution in that state and its roots and causes.

**Keywords:** Religious persecution, Christians, Huntington, clash of civilizations.

"Blessed are you when they revile you and persecute you.. for My sake"

#### (Matthew 5:11, The Holy Bible, NKJV)

In the beatitudes that Jesus proclaimed, he predicted that his followers' persecution and being the perfect example, he himself underwent the fiery accusations and was crucified. Later on, almost all of his twelve apostles were martyred with tradition saying that St. Thomas was martyred in India around AD 52. So the history of this persecution in India can be traced to first century Christianity. My aim through this research article is to highlight the politics of accusation by Hindutva factions is responsible for persecution on Christian converts from the tribal communities and Dalits in Orissa in the past decades.

Samuel P. Huntington, American political scientist, adviser and academic, in his famous essay "The Clash of Civilizations?" said that

"The great divisions among humankind and the dominating source of conflict will be cultural".

- Akkara, Anto.*Kandhamal: A blot on Indian Secularism.* Media House, 2009, p. 14, 25, 15. *The Constitution of India.* Article 25.
- Huntington, Samuel P., *Foreign Affairs, Vol. 72, No. 3.* Council of Foreign Relations, 1993, p. 22-49.
- Mangalwadi, Vishal, et al. *Burnt Alive*. GLS Publishing, 3 rd ed. 2012, p. 160, 210, 214-215.

# Mohan Rakesh's *Halfway House* (*Adhe Adhure*): A Tale of Human Relationship

Satendra Kumar

## Submitted: 26 April 2018, Revised: 15 May 2018, Accepted: 15 June 2018

**Abstract:** The present paper under print is a holistic approach for seeking through the images of women in male dominated so called society. Mohan Rakesh did his best to peep into the heart and soul of the protagonist namely Savitri who has had extra-marital relations with so many males only to axe her grind in life. As a result of that children also get distracted due to her enrolment in sexual relation. It is an humble effort to bring to the notice of the society the severe problems with which we are passing through.

Keywords: Relation, tension, society, rapport, playwright, etc.

Mohan Rakesh was one of the pioneers of the Nai Kahani, literally new story movement of the Hindi literature in the 1950s and made considerable contribution to novel, travelogue, criticism, memoirs, short story and drama. Rakesh was born on 8th January 1925 in Amritsar. He did his masters in Hindi and English from Punjab University. He was a talented playwright and novelist. As we go through his early works we find a gradual development in his later works. Gradually he comes closer to the fate and aspirations of mankind. He started his career as a teacher, and he taught in two colleges and a school, edited a short story magazine before deciding to write full-time. He was a master storyteller and had an excellent control over the language Hindi. He mostly wrote about the urban middle class people, about their hopes and aspirations. He edited a literary journal, Sarika, for some time. He entered the profession of teaching to earn his livelihood. After a few stints at teaching he took up freelancing as a profession because by temperament he was a rebel and wanderer. His small body of plays can be mentioned as Ashadh Ka Ek Din i.e. One Day in Ashadha, Lahron Ke Rajhans or Swans of the Waves, Adhe Adhure or The Incomplete Ones (1959) and the unfinished Pair Tale Ki Zamin or Ground Beneath the Feet which created a rage in the world of theatre.

- Pimpalapure, Meena. *Mohan Rakesh Ka Nari-Sansar*. Prakashan Sansthan, 1989.
- Rakesh, Mohan. *Half way House*. Trans. Bindu Batra, ed. Dilip K. Basu. Worldview, 1999.
- Srivastava, M.K. *Mohan Rakesh's Adhe-Adhure*. Laxmi Narayan Agarwal, 2003.

### Voicing the 'Voiceless' : A Study of Baby Kamble's *The Prisons We Broke*

**Anusha Prashar** 

## Submitted: 30 May 2018, Revised: 15 June 2018, Accepted: 30 June 2018

**Abstract:** Women, the gendered subaltern have always occupied the position of marginality. Patriarchy as a domineering force represses women and inscribes inferior status to them. Dalit women have witnessed marginalization in the representation of Dalit experience by male authors. Autobiographies of Dalit women capture the quest of women for liberation, enslaved viciously in the cage of patriarchy. Dalit women have made their voices more audible by giving place to their authentic, first hand experiences in literature written by them. The narratives written by them provide the real account of their lives by foregrounding the issues of discrimination and sufferings experienced by Dalit women. This paper proposes to highlight the issues of deprived and disenfranchised Dalit women as bearers of caste and gender discrimination in Baby Kamble's *The Prisons We Broke* (the first autobiography by a Dalit woman).

**Keywords:** Subaltern, Dalit, Patriarchy, Autobiography, Oppression, Gender.

Women, the gendered subaltern have always occupied the position of marginality. Rather than speaking themselves, they have always been spoken for by others. Patriarchy as a domineering force represses women and inscribes inferior status to them. Dalit women have witnessed marginalization in the representation of Dalit experience by male authors. Dalit women writers have been relegated to a marginalised position in literature. The orientation of Dalit literature is male dominated with women at the periphery. The real issues of Dalit women have always been sidelined by male authors. In comparison to Dalit men, the autobiographies written by Dalit women are quite few in number. Dalit feminists have started challenging hegemonic conventions as well as the dominant, exploitative system by questioning the portrayal of Dalit women in writings by male Dalit writers. Gopal Guru on the politics of people of their own community. The narratives written by women share the experiences of the whole community including children, men, women and elders as well. Dalit women writers have written about their severe struggles of resistance and through their writings have raised multiple voices of women against oppression. Dalit autobiographies move from personal to public by bringing up the hidden issues from marginality to mainstream. Dalit women have used pen as their weapon to counter the challenges imposed on them. In the contemporary times, dalit women writers through the medium of literature, are transgressing all the boundaries of region and religion by uniting together for their cause. Thus, *The Prisons We Broke* traces the journey of mahar women's liberation as they moved forward by breaking all the prisons that confided their body, mind and soul. It challenges the patriarchal social order and highlights the emergence of strong souls out of strong struggles.

#### Works Cited

- Chakravarti, Uma. *Gendering Caste: Through a Feminist Lens*. STREE, 2006.
- Guru, Gopal. Afterword. *The Prisons We Broke*. By Baby Kamble. Trans. Maya Pandit. Orient Blackswan, 2008. pp. 158-170.
- ... "Dalit Women Talk Differently." *Economic and Political Weekly*. 30. 41/42, 1995. pp.2548-2550. *JSTOR*. Web. 07 June. 2016.
- Kamble, Baby. *The Prisons We Broke*. Trans. Maya Pandit. Orient Blackswan, 2008.
- Manorama, Ruth. "Dalit Women in Struggle: Transforming Pain into Power." *Life as a Dalit: Views from the Bottom on Caste in India*. Eds. Subhadra Mitra Channa and Joan. P.Mencher. SAGE, 2013. 255-267.
- —. "Dalit Women: The Downtrodden among the Downtrodden." Women's Studies in India: AReader. Ed. Mary. E. John. Penguin Books India, 2008. pp. 445- 452.
- Pandit, Maya.Introduction.*The Prisons We Broke*. By Baby Kamble.Trans.Maya Pandit. Orient Blackswan, 2008. xi-xv.
- Rege, Sharmila. Writing Caste, Writing Gender: Narrating Dalit Women's Testimonies. New Zubaan, 2006.

### Exploring the Interaction between Trauma and Memory in Shahnaz Bashir's Novel, *The Half Mother*

Neha Chatterjee

## Submitted: 23 May 2018, Revised: 30 May 2018, Accepted: 30 June 2018

Abstract: The paper invokes to dig out the impacts of devastating historical event of 1990s Kashmir's long war and its indelible effects of trauma in the lives of different characters, in its claiming of the first victim of Natipora, Ghulam Rasool Joo and his family, in Shahnaz Bashir's novel, The Half Mother. This is basically an attempt to highlight the perspectives of trauma, influence of political and social history in personal lives, incessant recurrence of memory, traumatic post humanistic treatments, the crisis for stable history, and an endeavour to represent trauma in global level. History and its memories are like dark patches creating vacuum in Haleema's life, which can never be erased. The enduring impact of traumatic deaths and captivation fracture her self and identity from within. Getting captivated in her own fragmented microcosmic world she is continuously searching for her only stability, her son Imran, to get rid of every bitter past. Wars are not only about disintegration of nation, but also about degeneration of inner selves of both a community and an individual where surviving characters like Haleema are imposed with multiple baggages to negotiate with. Haleema's yearning for her son depicts a haunting history of Kashmir's all those relatives yearning and waiting for the return of their near ones. But her trauma and memory, paradoxically, help her to survive stoically and become a support system for others.

Keywords: Trauma; Memory; Identity; History.

#### I

Is the trauma the encounter with death or the ongoing experience of having survived it? (Caruth 7)

Etymologically, in Greek "trauma" or wound refers to injury inflicted on a body, but in psychiatric literature the term "trauma" is psychic wound or affect inflicted upon mind. Shahnaz Bashir's *The Half Mother*  history through the memories of Haleema, their crisis, and their overcoming of it. It is a tale which delves deep into the appalling ruinous effects of historical events of 1990s Kashmir. *The Half Mother* is a novel about grim realities of the Kashmiri survivors who can retrieve the direful impact of loss and violence through their Memory. History is past but its trauma is indelible and heinous at present. Therefore, trauma lies in its ongoing survival and ceaseless affects.

#### Works Cited

Bashir, Shahnaz. The Half Mother. Hachette, 2009.

- Caruth, Cathy. "Recapturing the Past: Introduction." *Trauma: Explorations in Memory*, John Hopkins UP, 1995, pp 3-12.
- —-. Unclaimed Experience: Trauma, Narrative, and History. John Hopkins UP, 1996.
- Freud, Sigmund. *On Murder, Mourning and Melancholia*. Translated by Shaun Whiteside, Penguin, 2005.
- Hall, Stuart. "Cultural Identity and Diaspora." *Framework*, 36,1993. pp 222-237.
- Levi, Primo. *If This is a Man*. Translated by Stuart Woolf, The Orion Press, 1959.
- Sen, Amartya. *Identity and Violence: The Illusion of Destiny*. Penguin, 2006.

### **Our Esteemed Contributors**

- 1. **Amitabh Roy** Associate Professor, Department of English, Alipurduar Mahila Mahavidyalaya, Newtown, Alipurduar, West Bengal, India.
- 2. **Richa Bhardwaj** Associate Professor of English, University College, Kurukshetra University Kurukshetra, Haryana, India.
- 3. **Mohd. Ahmar Alvi** Assistant Professor, Department of English, Aligarh Muslim University, Aligarh, Uttar Pradesh, India.
- 4. **Anavisha Banerjee** Assistant Professor, Department of English, Bharati College, University of Delhi, New Delhi, India
- 5. Amrita Bhattacharyya Assistant Professor, Department of English, Vidyasagar Mahavidyalaya, Mosat, Hooghly, West Bengal, India.
- 6. **Rekha Tiwari** Lecturer & Head, Dept. of English, Guru Nanak Girls P.G. College, Udaipur, Rajasthan, India.
- 7. **Manreet Dhaliwal** Assistant Professor, Postgraduate Department of English, Guru Gobind Singh College for Women, Chandigarh, India.
- 8. **Vipan Kumar** Assistant Professor, Department of English, SD College Hoshiarpur Punjab, India.
- 9. **Shalini Sharma** Assistant Professor, Department of English, Government Degree College, Nowshera, Jammu, Jammu & Kashmir, India.
- 10. **Dona Elizabeth Sam** Guest Lecturer (FDP), Department of English, Baselius College, Kottayam, Kerala, India.
- 11. **Nisarga Bhattacharjee** Guest Lecturer, Seth Anandaram Jaipuria College (Day) and Achrya Prafullya Chandra College, Kolkata, West Bengal, India.
- 12. Ananya Chatterjee Lecturer, Department of English, JIS University, Agarpara, West Bengal, India.
- 13. **Somrwita Ghosh** PhD Research Scholar, Department of Cultural Studies, The English and Foreign Languages University, Hyderabad, Telangana, India.

- 14. **Vidhi Yadav** Research Scholar, Department of English & Foreign Languages, Central University of Haryana, Jant- Pali, Mohindergarh, Haryana, India
- 15. **Manoj Kumar Vidyalankara** Assistant Professor, Department of English & Foreign Languages, Central University of Haryana, Jant-Pali, Mohindergarh, Haryana, India
- 16. **Sarita Dubey** Research Scholar, Department of English and Modern European Languages, University of Allahabad, Allahabad, Uttar Pradesh, India
- 17. **Riya Maji** Research Scholar, Department of English and Culture Studies, The University of Burdwan, Burdwan, West Bengal, India
- 18. **Midhu Mirian Alex** Research Scholar, Institute of English, University of Kerala, Kerala, India
- Brahmacharimayum Samita Devi Research Scholar, Department of Humanities and Social Sciences National Institute of Technology Meghalaya, Meghalaya, India
- 20. **Paonam Sudeep Mangang** Head of Department, Department of Humanities and Social Sciences, National Institute of Technology Meghalaya, Meghalaya, India
- 21. **Himani Sharma** Research Scholar, Department of English, Indira Gandhi Delhi Technical University for Women, Delhi, India
- 22. **Bhavya** Assistant Professor, Department of English, Indira Gandhi Delhi Technical University for Women, Delhi, India
- 23. Shweta Saroha Researcher, IndraPrastha University, Delhi, India
- 24. **Surojit Kayal** Junior Research Fellow, Department of English, Jadavpur University, West Bengal, India
- 25. Abhisek Ghosal M.Phil. Research Scholar, Department of English and Culture Studies, The University of Burdwan
- 26. **Recho Benjamin Teron** Postgraduate in English, University of Delhi, India.
- 27. Shikha Goyal Associate Prof & HOD, Department of English, JCDM(PG) College, Sirsa, Haryana, India.
- 28. Victoria Crawford Poet, American writer, ChiangMai, Thailand.
- 29. Xia Fang Researcher, University of Macau, Poet and Bilingual translator, Guangdong, China.

- 30. **B. Zulaiha Shakeel** Head, Department of English, TBAK College, Kilakarai, Ramanathapuram, Tamilnadu, India.
- Sanjib Kumar Baishya Assistant Professor, Department of English, Zakir Husain Delhi College (Evening), University of Delhi, Delhi, India.
- 32. Christa Pandey Poet, Austin, TX, USA.
- 33. **Vanshika Sharma** Poet, Post graduate, Central University of Himachal Pradesh, Kangra, Himachal Pradesh, India.
- 34. **Neha Raina** Assistant Professor, Department of English, Govt. S.P.M.R College Of Commerce, Canal road, Jammu, Jammu and Kashmir, India.
- 35. **Sreedevi K.S.** Research Scholar, St.Aloysius College, Thrissur, Kerala, India.
- 36. **Anindya Sundar Pal** Assistant Professor, Department of English Kalna College, Kalna, Burdwan, West Bengal, India.
- 37. Amrita Sharma Research Scholar, Department of English, University of Lucknow, Uttar Pradesh, India.
- 38. **Sabarna Roy** Poet, Civil Engineer, Jadavpur University & Vice President, Business Development, Kolkata, West Bengal, India.
- 39. Anusha Prashar Research Scholar, Panjab University, Chandigarh.
- 40. **Satendra Kumar** Associate Professor, Pt L.M.S. Govt PG College, Rishikesh, Dehradun.
- 41. **Neha Chatterjee** M.Phil. Research Scholar, Department of English and Culture Studies, The University of Burdwan.